
STATE OF CALIFORNIA                                                                                                                                     Gavin Newsom, Governor 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
505 VAN NESS AVENUE 

SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94102-3298 

 
June 28, 2022                  G20210429-3215-DOT 
  
Mr. Rodger Schwecke 
Senior Vice President and Chief Infrastructure Officer 
Southern California Gas Company 
555 West 5th Street, GT21C3 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
 
Dear Mr. Schwecke: 
 
The Safety and Enforcement Division (SED) of the California Public Utilities Commission (Commission) submits 
the following Notice of Probable Violation (NOPV) letter as part of its investigation of the Department of 
Transportation (DOT) reportable incident (DOT Initial #1303844) that occurred on April 29, 2021, at  

 in Santa Monica, CA. This incident resulted in property damage to a Southern California Gas Company 
(SoCalGas) facility (16-inch Distribution Steel Main), and the estimated cost of the property damage, emergency 
response, and gas released was $604,268.  SED discovered one violation: one violation of §192.747 (a). 
 

1. 1.1 General Order (G.O.) 112-F, Reference Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 192, 
§192.747 (a) General states: 

“(a) Each valve, the use of which may be necessary for the safe operation of a distribution system, must be 
checked and serviced at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year.” 

 
SED’s investigation found that SoCalGas developed and implemented an ad-hoc isolation plan with non-emergency 
valves at the time of the incident instead of following its established emergency plan, e.g. using emergency 
(necessary for the safe operation of a distribution system) valves, to isolate the incident area expecting to minimize 
the number of the service interruptions. One of the non-emergency valves failed to close resulting in continuing gas 
flow in the 16-inch Distribution Steel Main, gas released into the atmosphere for approximately 39 hours 40 
minutes, estimated cost of gas released was $149,898 (24,983 mcf), and service interruption of approximately 57 
hours 15 minutes. In addition, SED investigation found that SoCalGas should have designated / identified these 
non-emergency valves as emergency valves; failure to properly identify the non-emergency valves necessary for the 
safe operation of the system resulted in the large amount of gas released into the atmosphere and a lengthy service 
interruption. Therefore, SED finds SoCalGas in violation of GO 112-F, Reference Title 49 CFR, Part 192, Section 
§192.747(a) for failure to check and service these valves at interval 15 months, but at least once each calendar year.  
 
Within 30 days of the date of this letter, please provide your response to the probable violations addressed in this 
letter.  Thank you for your cooperation in this investigation. If you have any questions, please contact Gordon Kuo 
(Utilities Engineer), by phone at (213) 618-5263 or by email at gk2@cpuc.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Mahmoud Intably, P.E. 
Program and Project Supervisor 
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch 
Safety and Enforcement Division 
 
cc: See next page     

 



 
 

 
, Manager 

Pipeline Safety and Compliance 
Southern California Gas Company 
555 West 5th Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
 

 Senior Director  
Safety Management Systems 
Southern California Gas Company 
555 West 5th Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
 
Terence Eng, P.E. 
Program Manager 
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch 
Safety and Enforcement Division 
 
Kan-Wai Tong, P.E. 
Senior Utilities Engineer (Supervisor) 
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch 
Safety and Enforcement Division 
 
Gordon Kuo, P.E.  
Utilities Engineer 
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch 
Safety and Enforcement Division 
 
Claudia Almengor 
Associate Governmental Program Analyst 
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch 
Safety and Enforcement Division 




